(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Statement of Financial Position	3
Statement of Activities	4
Statement of Functional Expenses	5
Statement of Cash Flows	6
Notes to Financial Statements	8
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with	
Government Auditing Standards	18

* * * *



ALEXIS H. WONG

CHARLOTTE SIEW-KUN TAY

CATHY L. HWANG

Rita B. Dela Cruz

SCOTT K. SMITH

Crisanto S. Francisco

Joe F. Huie

SHERMAN G. LEONG

Board of Directors Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation Ukiah, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control. Accordingly,
 no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
 accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
 financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated March 8, 2023 on our consideration of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Lindquist, von Husen and Jaya LLP

March 8, 2023

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents	\$	13,767,561
Receivables:		
State Regional Center contracts (Note 3)		45,977,507
Intermediate Care Facility		59,572
Due from State – unfunded pension liability (Note 4)		7,083,025
Due from State – accrued vacation and other leave benefits		494,995
Due from State – deferred rent		115,153
Other receivables		10,350
Investments		77,739
Prepaid expenses		77,472
Security deposits		24,950
Total assets	\$	67,688,324
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS		
Accounts payable	\$	16,106,397
Advances – State Regional Center contracts (Note 5)		43,684,165
Unfunded accrued pension liability (Note 4)		7,083,025
Accrued vacation and other leave benefits		494,995
Reserve for unemployment insurance		126,850
Deferred rent liability		115,153
		(7. (10.505
Total liabilities		67,610,585
Net assets:		
Without donor restrictions		77,739
Total net assets		77,739
Total Not abbots	_	11,137
Total liabilities and net assets	\$	67,688,324

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Without Donor	With Donor	
	Restrictions	Restrictions	Total
Support and revenue:			
State Regional Center contracts	\$ 154,376,847	\$ -	\$ 154,376,847
Intermediate Care Facility revenue	177,319	-	177,319
Unrealized and realized gain (loss) on investments	(15,470)	-	(15,470)
Interest income	11,759	-	11,759
Other income	1,762	-	1,762
	154,552,217	-	154,552,217
Expenses:			
Program services:	10.170.401		10.150.601
Living out of home	12,173,621	-	12,173,621
Case management	9,603,526	-	9,603,526
Day program	6,178,779	-	6,178,779
Other purchased services	122,638,315	-	122,638,315
Program development	1,208,719	-	1,208,719
Intake	252,236	-	252,236
Other direct services	729,420	-	729,420
Supporting services:			
Management and general	1,782,195	-	1,782,195
Total expenses	154,566,811	-	154,566,811
Change in net assets	(14,594)	-	(14,594)
Net assets, beginning of year	92,333	-	92,333
Net assets, end of year	\$ 77,739	\$ -	\$ 77,739

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

					gram				Supporting	
					vices				Services	•
	Living			Other			Other	Program		
	Out of	Case	Day	Purchased	Program		Direct	Services	Management	
	Ноте	Management	Program	Services	Development	Intake	Services	Total	and General	Total
Purchase of services	\$ 12,173,621	\$ -	\$ 6,178,779	\$ 122,638,315	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 140,990,715	\$ -	\$ 140,990,715
Salaries	-	4,830,342	-		610,851	123,838	463,147	6,028,178	851,470	6,879,648
Employee health and retirement benefits	-	2,486,073	-	-	314,392	63,737	112,674	2,976,876	438,233	3,415,109
Facility rent	-	758,435	-	-	95,913	19,444	-	873,792	133,693	1,007,485
Communication	-	207,003	-	-	26,178	5,307	-	238,488	36,490	274,978
Staff travel	-	84,690	-	-	4,955	8,196	4,187	102,028	26,432	128,460
General expenses	-	475,688	-	-	60,156	12,196	-	548,040	83,852	631,892
Consultant services	-	84,170	-	-	10,644	2,158	149,412	246,384	14,837	261,221
Utilities	-	90,428	-	-	11,436	2,318	-	104,182	15,940	120,122
Insurance	-	110,138	-	-	13,928	2,824	-	126,890	19,414	146,304
Payroll taxes	-	4,244	-	-	537	109	-	4,890	748	5,638
Facility maintenance	-	3,232	-	-	409	83	-	3,724	569	4,293
Equipment rental and maintenance	-	277,794	-	-	35,130	7,122	-	320,046	48,968	369,014
ARCA dues	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	26,752	26,752
Accounting fees	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	44,000	44,000
Advertising	-	58,699	-	-	7,423	1,505	-	67,627	10,347	77,974
Data processing	-	41,092	-	-	5,196	1,053	-	47,341	7,244	54,585
Legal fees	-	49,670	-	-	6,281	1,273	-	57,224	8,757	65,981
Equipment purchases	-	25,974	-	-	3,285	666	-	29,925	4,578	34,503
Board expenses	-	6,427	-	-	813	165	-	7,405	1,132	8,537
Interest	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	7,078	7,078
Printing		9,427	-	-	1,192	242	-	10,861	1,661	12,522
Total expenses	\$ 12,173,621	\$ 9,603,526	\$ 6,178,779	\$ 122,638,315	\$ 1,208,719	\$ 252,236	\$ 729,420	\$ 152,784,616	\$ 1,782,195	\$ 154,566,811

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:	
Receipts from contract income	\$ 155,671,283
Intermediate Care Facilities receipts	199,909
Interest receipts	11,759
Other receipts	1,762
Total receipts	155,884,713
Purchase of services	(140,990,715)
Salaries	(6,885,286)
Employee health and retirement benefits	(1,968,061)
Facility rent and maintenance	(1,014,950)
Equipment purchases, rental, and maintenance	(403,517)
General office expenses	(771,529)
Communication	(287,500)
Consultant services	(261,221)
Training, development, and conferences	(163,749)
Utilities	(120,122)
Insurance	(146,304)
Accounting fees	(44,000)
Legal fees	(65,981)
Total disbursements	(153,122,935)
Net cash provided by operating activities	2,761,778
Cash flows from investing activities:	
Payments made for purchase of investments	(876)
Net cash used by investing activities	(876)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents	2,760,902
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	11,006,659
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	\$ 13,767,561

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:	
Change in net assets	\$ (14,594)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by	
operating activities:	
Unrealized and realized (gain) loss on investment	15,470
(Increase) decrease in assets:	
Receivable – State Regional Center contracts	(9,026,114)
Receivable – Intermediate Care Facility	22,590
Due from State – unfunded pension liability	3,227,702
Due from State – accrued vacation and other leave benefits	(16,986)
Due from State – deferred rent	(9,127)
Other receivables	(10,000)
Prepaid expenses	(3,172)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:	
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	1,458,641
Advances – State Regional Center contracts	10,330,550
Unfunded accrued pension liability	(3,227,702)
Accrued vacation and other leave benefits	16,986
Reserve for unemployment insurance	(11,593)
Deferred revenue	 9,127
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 2,761,778
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 13,767,561
Total cash and cash equivalents shown in the statement of cash flows	\$ 13,767,561

 $(A\ California\ Nonprofit\ Public\ Benefit\ Corporation)$

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation (the Center), was incorporated on November 10, 1977, as a California nonprofit public benefit corporation under contract with the State of California Department of Developmental Services (DDS) for the purpose of operating the Center and related activities. The Center was organized in accordance with the provision of the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (the Lanterman Act) of the Welfare and Institutions Code of the State of California. In accordance with the Lanterman Act, the Center, doing business as the Redwood Coast Regional Center, coordinates, through outside providers, diagnostic and assessment of eligible services to persons with developmental disabilities and plans, accesses, coordinates and monitors services to such individuals and their families. The Center is one of 21 regional centers within the State of California system and serves the counties of Del Norte, Humboldt, Lake, and Mendocino.

The Lanterman Act includes governance provisions regarding the composition of the Center's Board of Directors. The Lanterman Act states that the Board shall be comprised of individuals with demonstrated interest in, or knowledge of, developmental disabilities, and other relevant characteristics, and requires that a minimum of 50% of the governing board be persons with developmental disabilities or their parents or legal guardians; and that no less than 25% of the members of the governing board shall be persons with developmental disabilities. In addition, a member of a required advisory committee composed of persons representing the various categories of providers from which the Center purchases client services, shall serve as a member of the board. To comply with the Lanterman Act, the Center's board of directors includes persons with developmental disabilities, or their parents or legal guardians, who receive services from the Center and a client service provider of the Center.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Method

The Center uses the accrual method of accounting, which recognizes income in the period earned and expenses when incurred, regardless of the timing of payments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The Center reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as applicable: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

- Net assets without donor restrictions include those assets over which the Board of Directors has
 discretionary control in carrying out the operations of the Center.
- Net assets with donor restrictions include those assets subject to donor restrictions and for which the applicable restrictions were not met as of the end of the current reporting period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. When a donor restriction expires that is, when a stipulated time restrictions ends or purpose restriction is accomplished net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates the resources be maintained in perpetuity.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenue Recognition:

Contributions

Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are unconditionally communicated. Grants represent contributions if resource providers receive no value in exchange for the assets transferred. Contributions are recorded at their fair value as support without donor restrictions or support with donor restrictions, depending on the absence or existence of donor-imposed restrictions as applicable. When a restriction expires (that is when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. If donors' restrictions are satisfied in the same period that the contribution is received, the contribution is reported as support without donor restrictions.

Government contracts, which are funded on a reimbursement basis, are shown as revenue without donor restriction. A portion of the Center's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Center has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions.

The Center determined that governmental contract revenue represents unconditional contributions to the extent that reimbursable costs have been incurred. The excess unexpended balance of the governmental contracts represents a conditional contribution.

Federal Grants

U.S. Department of Education

The Center is a sub-recipient to DDS with regard to the Special Education Grants for Infants and Families, Part C, which provides funding for early intervention services for infants and toddlers, through age 3, as authorized by Public Law 102-119.

This grant is conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Center recognized grant revenue totaling \$593,586 from this award.

Intermediate Care Facility

During the year ended June 30, 2011, various legislative changes were made to the California Welfare and Institutions Code retroactively to July 1, 2007, making Intermediate Care Facility (ICF) providers responsible for providing consumer day treatment and transportation services, and ultimately, making such services eligible for reimbursement under California's Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Program, which is funded by the Medicaid Waiver grant (Medicaid). Previously, such services were not reimbursable by Medicaid because the funds were not directly billed and received by the ICFs. The legislative changes allow for DDS to bill these services to Medicaid and capture federal dollars.

Effective July 1, 2012, the Center began billing the ICFs directly for monthly consumer day treatment and transportation services. DDS does not reimburse the Center for these costs and they are billed direct to and are collected from the ICFs.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Generally, only investments with original maturities of three months or less qualify as cash equivalents. The Center occasionally maintains cash on deposit at a bank in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. The uninsured cash balance was approximately \$13,950,000 as of June 30, 2022. The Center has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

State Regional Center Contract Receivables and Advances

The majority of the Center's receivables represents amount due from the State for reimbursement of expenditures made by the Center under the annual regional center contracts. Advances represent cash advances received by the Center under annual regional center contracts. Amounts receivable from the State are offset against advances payable when the State notifies the Center that a right of offset exists. The Center considers all amounts receivable under grant contracts to be collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts exists.

Investments

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America establish a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Center. Unobservable inputs, if any, reflects the Center's assumption about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 1 – Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Center has the ability to access at measurement date. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 securities. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these securities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2 – Valuations based on significant inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly or quoted prices in markets that are not active, that is, markets in which there are few transactions, the prices are not current or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers.

Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement.

The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from security to security and is affected by a wide variety of factors, including the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet established in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Those estimated values do not necessarily represent the amounts that may be ultimately realized due to the occurrence of future circumstances that cannot be reasonably determined. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used had a ready market for the securities existed.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices (Level 1) and consist of funds managed by the Humboldt Area Foundation in pooled accounts consisting of mutual funds and equity securities. Detail information on the makeup of these investments was not available. The Center considers investments in this Foundation as being available for sale. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets on the statement of activities.

State Equipment

State Equipment is stated at cost of acquisition. Pursuant to the terms of the DDS contract, equipment purchases become the property of the State of California and, accordingly, are charged as expenses when incurred. The Center expenses the cost of equipment upon acquisition if purchased with funds from the DDS contract in accordance with the Regional Center Fiscal Manual. The Center capitalizes items which cost more than \$5,000 and have an estimated useful life of more than one year.

Accrued Vacation, Sick and Other Leave Benefits

The Center has accrued a liability for leave benefits earned by employees. However, such benefits are reimbursed under the contract with DDS only when actually paid. The Center has recorded a receivable from the DDS for the accrued leave benefits to reflect the future reimbursement of such benefits.

Deferred Rent Liability

The Center leases office facilities under lease agreements that are subject to scheduled acceleration of rental payments. The scheduled rent increases are amortized evenly over the term of the leases. The deferred rent liability of \$115,153 at June 30, 2022, represents the difference between the cash payments made and the amount expensed since inception of the leases. The DDS contract reimburses the Center for rent after it is paid and the deferred rent is included in the receivable due from DDS to reflect the future reimbursement of the payments.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Center records the unfunded accrued pension liability of its defined benefit pension plan with California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) on the statement of financial position. CalPERS has characteristics of a multi-employer plan. The Center uses the actuarial report provided by CalPERS coinciding with the Center's fiscal year end; however, the actuarial report is one year in arrears. The delay is due to the fact that there is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. The lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies with their employer contribution rates well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. Accordingly, the actual unfunded accrued pension liability at year-end may differ from the recorded amount as calculated one year in arrears. As of June 30, 2022, the difference cannot be reasonably determined; however, according to CalPERS, the respective actuarial report provides the most accurate representation available of the unfunded accrued pension liability and plan assets.

Income Taxes

The Center is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and the related California code sections.

The Center believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. The Center's federal and state information returns for the years 2018 through 2021 are subject to examination by regulatory agencies, generally for three years and four years after they were filed for federal and state, respectively.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Functional Expenses Allocation

The costs of providing program and supporting services are summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Expenses directly attributed to a specific functional area of the Center are reported as expenses of those functional areas, while shared costs that benefit multiple functional areas have been allocated among the various functional areas based on estimates determined by management to be equitable. Shared costs are generally allocated among the program and supporting service benefited based on an analysis of personnel time and square footage occupied by the program and supporting services.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 8, 2023, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 – STATE REGIONAL CENTER CONTRACT RECEIVABLE

State Regional Center contract receivable at June 30, 2022 is summarized, as follows:

Claims submitted:

 Current year
 \$ 44,024,051

 Prior year
 2,043,773

 Second prior year
 (90,317)

Total \$ 45,977,507

NOTE 4 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The Center participates in the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multi-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and Center resolutions. Copies of CalPERS' comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) may be obtained from CalPERS, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811 and at www.calpers.ca.gov.

The risks of participating in this plan is that if the Regional Center chooses to stop participating in its multi-employer plan, it may be required to pay the plan an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a termination liability.

Funding Policy

Participants employed on or before January 1, 2013 (classic plan), are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. Participants employed after January 1, 2013 (PEPRA plan), are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary. The Center is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate for their participants. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The employer rate for the 2021-2022 fiscal year was 8.65% (for the classic plan) and 7.59% (for the PEPRA plan) of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Center are established and may be amended by CalPERS.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Center's actuarially determined contribution was \$1,263,679 and the actual contribution was \$1,286,800.

<u>Unfunded Accrued Pension Liability</u>

At June 30, 2022, the Center reported an unfunded accrued pension liability of \$7,083,025 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the unfunded accrued pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The Center's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Center's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Center's proportion was 0.0017294 for the total pension liability and 0.0015191 for the fiduciary net position.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date June 30, 2020
Measurement date June 30, 2021
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Asset valuation method Market Value
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.15% (Net of administrative expenses)
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases Varies by entry age and service
Payroll growth 3.00%
Investment rate of return 7.375%, net of pension plan investment and

nvestment rate of return 7.375%, net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes inflation

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were derived from the June 30, 2020, funding valuation report.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for each plan. The amortization and smoothing periods recently adopted by the Board were utilized to determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate. A projection of expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if the assets would run out. The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report entitled, "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be obtained on the CalPERS' website.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

According to Paragraph 30 of GASB Statement No. 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined with reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.375% investment return assumption used in the accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return, excluding administrative expenses, would have been 7.525%. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in the calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stake holder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB Statement No. 67 and GASB Statement No. 68 calculations. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in the calculation until the methodology is changed.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11 to 60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

Sensitivity of the Unfunded Accrued Pension Liability to the Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the unfunded accrued pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the unfunded accrued pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.15%) or one percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

	Current			
	1% Decrease (6.15%)	Discount Rate (7.15%)	1% Increase (8.15%)	
Unfunded accrued pension liability	\$ 11,641,626	\$ 7,083,025	\$ 3,314,495	

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 5 – CONTRACT ADVANCES

Contract advances represents funds DDS advances to the Center at the beginning of each fiscal year to provide interest-free working capital. DDS uses its discretion in determining the balance on a month-to-month basis. If DDS so chooses, the advances can be paid by off-setting claim reimbursements partially or in full or require the Center to make a payment. As of June 30, 2022, the contract advances balance totaled \$43,684,165.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 6 – LINE OF CREDIT

The Center has a \$7,000,000 revolving line of credit with MUFG Union Bank, N.A., secured by substantially all assets of the Center. Interest on the outstanding balance is payable monthly at an interest rate of 5.00% at June 30, 2022, and amounted to \$7,078 for the year ended June 30, 2022. There was no outstanding balance at June 30, 2022. The line of credit expires on September 30, 2022.

NOTE 7 – OPERATING LEASES

The Center is obligated under lease agreements for office facilities. The lease terms range from two to ten years and expire in various years through 2031. The terms of the leases provide for payment of minimum annual rentals and liability insurance.

Future minimum payments under these leases are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,				
2023	\$	761,804		
2024		586,993		
2025		597,303		
2026		598,076		
2027		572,018		
Thereafter		1,589,644		
Total	\$	4,705,838		

Total facility rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was \$904,127.

NOTE 8 – FUNDING LIMITS

State of California Contract

The Center operates under an annual cost-reimbursement contract with DDS under the Lanterman Act. The maximum expenditures under the contract are limited to the contract amount plus interest earned. The Center is required to maintain accounting records in accordance with the Regional Center Fiscal Manual, issued by DDS, and is required to have DDS approval for certain expenses. In the event of termination or nonrenewal of the contract, the State of California maintains the right to assume control of the Center's operation and the obligation of its liabilities.

Under the terms of these contracts, funded expenditures are not to exceed the contract amount and are subject to budget amendments. The unexpended balance under these contracts represents a conditional contribution that will be used to fund expenditures in the next fiscal years until the contract amounts are fully expended or expire. The Center can bill DDS in the future for expenses relating to previous fiscal years if the expenses billed relate to the previous fiscal year. As a result, the Center internally tracks revenue by current year, previous year and second previous year.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Contracts open for the current and two prior fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended	Contract	Cumulative	Unexpended
	Amount	Expenses	Balance
June 30, 2022	\$ 177,881,428	\$ 148,519,202	\$ 29,362,226
June 30, 2021	\$ 163,061,616	\$ 148,120,149	\$ 14,941,467
June 30, 2020	\$ 144,784,538	\$ 142,979,785	\$ 1,804,753

Management monitors the unexpended balance to avoid overspending the contract limits. Management believes that total expenditures for each open year will not exceed the approved final state contract amount.

NOTE 9 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restriction limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position, comprise the following:

Financial assets at end of year available within one year:

Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 13,767,561
Receivable – State Regional Center Contracts	45,977,507
Receivable – Intermediate Care Facility	59,572
Investments	77,739
Other receivable	10,350
	59,892,729
Less financial assets not available for general expenditures: Advance State Regional Center Contracts	(43,684,165)
Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year	\$ 16,208,564

Financial assets include amounts that will be used to pay accounts payable, accrued expenses and other distributions from operating cash flow, if any, in the subsequent year. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position date.

According to the Center's contract with DDS, the State and the regional centers collaborate to build the budget for the regional center system using the best quality data and information available. This budget provides data to assist in building the Governor's January Budget and the May Revise.

Additionally each regional center submits a monthly purchase of service expenditure projection to DDS, beginning in December of each fiscal year. By February 1st of each year, DDS allocates, to all regional centers, approximately ninety-nine percent (99%) of the enacted budget for operations and purchase of service. To do this, it may be necessary to amend the Center's contract in order to allocate funds made available from budget augmentations to allocate funds among regional centers. In the event that DDS determines that a regional center has insufficient funds to meet its contractual obligations, DDS shall utilize proper legislative measures to secure additional funds and provide the regional center with regulatory and statutory relief.

The Center maintains a line of credit to manage cash flow requirements during the months of May through October as needed to cover any delays in cash advances and reimbursements over the beginning of the fiscal year.

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 10 – RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

California Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 4622, require that a minimum of 50% of the Center's governing board be comprised of persons with developmental disabilities or their parents or legal guardians and at least one member who represents the vendor community. Program service payments were made on behalf of persons with developmental disabilities that were governing board members or were related to governing board members. Related party payments of \$5,751,529 were made for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER MATTERS

In accordance with the terms of the State of California contract, an audit may be performed by an authorized state representative. Should such audit disclose any unallowable costs, the Center may be liable to the State for reimbursement of such costs. In the opinion of the Center's management, the effect of any disallowed costs would be immaterial to the financial statements as of June 30, 2022.

The Center is dependent on continued funding provided by the DDS to operate and provide services for its clients. The Center's contract with DDS provides funding for services under the Lanterman Act. In the event that the operations of the Center result in a deficit position at the end of any contract year, DDS may reallocate surplus funds within the State of California system to supplement the Center's funding. Should a system-wide deficit occur, DDS is required to report to the Governor of California and the appropriate fiscal committee of the State Legislature and recommend actions to secure additional funds or reduce expenditures. DDS's recommendations are subsequently reviewed by the Governor and the Legislature and a decision is made with regard to specific actions, including the possible suspension of the entitlement.

<u>Unemployment Insurance</u>

The Center has elected to finance its unemployment insurance using the prorated cost-of-benefits method. Under this method, the Center is required to reimburse the State of California for benefits paid to its former employees. At June 30, 2022, the Center had \$126,850 in a reserve trust account to pay for any potential unemployment claims.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The emergence and spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) beginning in the first quarter of 2020 has affected businesses and economic activities in the U.S. and beyond. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Center's operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, the effects on supply chains, service providers, and business partners, and changes in business practices, all of which are uncertain and cannot be determined at this time.

NOTE 12 – LEGAL MATTERS

The Center is involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of its business. The Center believes it has adequate defenses and insurance coverage for these actions and, thus, has made no provision in the financial statements for any costs relating to the settlement of such claims.



ALEXIS H. WONG

CHARLOTTE SIEW-KUN TAY

CATHY L. HWANG

Rita B. Dela Cruz

SCOTT K. SMITH

Crisanto S. Francisco

Joe F. Huie

SHERMAN G. LEONG

Board of Directors Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation Ukiah, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 8, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Redwood Coast Developmental Services Corporation's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lindquist, von Husen and Joyce LLP

March 8, 2023